THE CASTLE INN & MORGAN’S HOTEL
Nuneaton
By Peter Lee
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It is hard to imagine it today but at one time there were thirteen pubs in the Market Place, or within a few yards of it. The White Swan, The Ram, The White Hart, The Castle, The Hare & Squirrel (later the Crystal Palace), The Board, The Peacock, The Plough, and the Bull Hotel also had a Public Bar, then there was the Nags Head in Coventry Street, the Market House Inn (in what we refer to today as Boffin’s Arcade), the Robin Hood (the Nuneaton Brewery Tap) in Bridge Street and the Red Lion, a few yards along Queens Road.

There was a very good commercial reason for all these pubs. Back then the Market Place was bustling with traders on Market Days. As there was no means of communication other than by the long winded postal system, or by word of mouth it was very convenient for traders and commercial travellers to do business in the pub. The deal was settled by a handshake over a “pie and a pint”. 

Pubs generally fell into three categories. Beer Houses – serving only beer, not wines and spirits; Public Houses – selling, beer, wines and spirits and Inns – Public Houses with accommodation. It was not unusual as well for shops to sell ale in addition to their regular products. For example Evans & Sons in Abbey Street, Agricultural & Horticultural Requisite Dealers sold ale on the side. Another stimulus to the pub trade was the lack of competition from other activities. If you lived in a mean courtyard in Nuneaton town, you went to the pub to get away from a cramped cottage full of kids and a nagging housewife. It was the only release from a rotten existence for many townsfolk.

The subject of this week’s foray into old Nuneaton is the Castle in the Market Place. At one time the Castle occupied a row of three pubs next door to each other. The Ram, an ancient hostelry extant in 1544 and closed by the 1870’s, the White Hart, another decrepit old pub. Followed by the Castle a relative newcomer when it opened its doors to admit the first customers on 1st. October 1817. The original landlord was Benjamin Kelsey who had purchased the property from a family called Wilson. In May 1823 the license was taken over by James Wagstaff (1783-1838) aged 39 who moved to Nuneaton from Market Bosworth where he was working for Earl Howe on the Gopsall Estate as a carpenter and joiner. Mr. Wagstaff died on July 2nd 1838, and the business was carried on by his son also James. At one time Thomas Bedder ran a cart to Hinckley starting and terminating at the Castle every Tuesday. Transport was a very slow process before the advent of railways. It was common to find pubs as the starting and finishing point for carriers. It made a lot of sense. It was a means of refreshing the carrier and his passengers after a bumpy and long winded journey, and provided a convenient waiting room and shelter in inclement weather.

By 1850 the licensee was Thomas Ball, followed by Thomas William Benfield who brewed beer on the premises for a time who was there in 1863. The local trade directories indicate that by 1868 it was owned by Frederick Lord, followed by John Argyle by 1874, and then in 1880 the proprietor was Ebenezer Brown, the well known local pub entrepreneur. Eb. Brown turned the Hare & Squirrel pub just over the road into Nuneaton’s first music hall – The Crystal Palace. Whilst Ebenezer Brown turned his attention to the Crystal Palace the former licensee of the Half Moon in Abbey Street, Abraham Weston took over the Castle. It was around about this time that the Castle was advertising: “The new tea and coffee rooms added to the above hotel are conducted on a low tariff adopted in modern coffee houses.” There was some attempt at the time to persuade Nuneaton townsfolk to give up the dreaded booze and drink healthier. Needless to say, temperance was a fairly marginal affair in Nuneaton.  

At some time prior to 1912 James Birt Morgan took over the Castle. A miner by trade he had travelled up to the Midlands with his brother Edmund from the Forest of Dean. Edmund became a brewer in Tamworth, whilst after a spell as under-manager at Charity Colliery, Bedworth, James took over the Peacock in the Market Place, before the Castle became available. He acquired the Castle and turned it into a thriving commercial success. Unfortunately this would end in tragedy for James as he committed suicide on the day his son Washington Grant Morgan died aged 22. James was 59. He was so terribly distraught at the loss of his son. 
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Morgan’s Hotel used to stand in Queens Road. With Dining and Tea Rooms. It offered accommodation for local visitors to the town within a few yards of the Market Place. It was also owned by James Birt Morgan 

My grateful thanks to James Birt Morgan’s great grand-daughter Nita Pearson for the photograph and the notes on her ancestor.







